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N e w s  f r o m  t h e  S c h o o l h o u s e  

Letter from the President 

 

Dear friends of the Middlebury Historical Society, 

                                                 You did it! 

Your generosity in the past two years has enabled your histor-
ical society to purchase a computer and software to meet the 
increasing needs of the digital age. We are fortunate to have 
volunteers who know a great deal about computers like Terry 
McAuliffe, Patrick Jordan, Tyler Smith and Harold West Jr. 
They were able to select the instruments and to set up our im-
proved computer system. With this new capability, we are 
able to store vast amounts of data and back up our infor-
mation through the internet. 

The new devices will enable us to continue scanning photo-
graphs, documents and other valuable historical items in an 

effort to capture, preserve and share Middleburyôs history with many others. Eventually, all Con-
necticut historical societies will be able to upload valuable historical information to a public site 
so that all others may benefit from this information. 

We will also use the computer to continue compiling an inventory of every item in our collec-
tion and to attach images of them to the historical narrative. Itôs an exciting time for us, and a big 
thank you goes out to our regular volunteers, Bob Scholl, Agnes Lutes, Harold West Jr., Tyler 
Smith, Mary Ann McCormack, Scott Lutes, Joannie Rafford, Chris Parker and Donna Kelly, and 
to others who stop in and assist us and donate items. 

Thank you all for being such loyal members! 

Genially, 

Bob 

Robert L. Rafford 
President, Middlebury Historical Society 
 

 



The Picture Waterbury  

Project  

Lief Bjaland, Music Director and Conductor of the Water-

bury Symphony Orchestra visited the Middlebury Historical 

Society early this spring  to obtain images of town for the  

orchestraõs season finale Picture This at the Fine Arts Center 

at  Naugatuck Valley Community College. The concert 

featured photos and news clippings that captured the es-

sence of greater Waterbury as a backdrop to Mussorgskyõs 

Pictures at an Exhibition.  Many beautiful  photos of town 

were included in the video production.   

Historical Society President Bob Rafford, left and Leif 

Bjaland , Music Director of the Waterbury Symphony 

Orchestra.  

The  recently approved plan for the Albini Funeral Home and Crematory proposed for Benson 

Road will have two cupolas designed in the style of the cupola on the Middlebury Historical Society. 

Our building, completed in 1897 was designed by the architects McKim, Mead & White,  one of the 

most prominent and well respected firms of its time.   

Middleburyõs òWild gardensó   

What do the Middlebury Historical Society, The Biltmore Estate 

in Asheville North Carolina, Hillstead Museum in Farmington 

Connecticut, and Biscayne Boulevard in Miami, Florida, have in 

common? The genius behind the landscaping in each of these is 

Warren H. Manning, world famous designer.  His plans retained 

the original vegetation as much as possible, sometimes trimming 

and transplanting if necessary.  He did not change the topography 

of the land but made use of it and the elements of which it was 

composed. This was a departure from the formal landscaping of 

the day in which the land was cleared and the contours modified 

to produce a symmetrical design.  Manning also designed the land 

surrounding the Whittemore Estate overlooking Lake Quassa-

paug.  

   Middlebury Historical Society Cupola Influences  Design of New Town Business  

This early photo of Center School, now the Middlebury Historical 

Society shows the building sitting on a rise blending into its envi-

ronment. The property still maintains Manningõs original design.   



Yesterday and Today  

  Traveling west into Middlebury on Route 64 near the intersection of Route 63 (Straits Turnpike) in 1944 and again in 2015 

Route 63 and Route 64

Route 63: Straits Turnpike  

In 1797, ten years before the incorporation of the town of Middlebury, 

the Straits Turnpike Company was established to build a 36 mile road 

connecting the New Haven courthouse to the courthouse in Litchfield. 

Self sustaining roads, turnpikes charge for passage to cover the cost of 

their own maintenance rather than placing this tax burden on the 

towns.  These early roads used a gate called a pike which was laid 

across the road. When the fee was paid the pike was turned, that is, 

opened, allowing the people, animals, carts and carriages to pass 

through. Inns, lodging and sometimes whole villages grew up around 

these toll areas to provide food and rest for the travelers.   The pro-

cess  is the same for todayõs modernized tollbooths and vehicles.  

The origin of the name Straits is unclear. According to Brad Smith, 

former Middlebury town historian, it may have been that it was laid out 

in a straight line between New Haven and Litchfield.  Early maps sup-

port this view as they used the name as Straights.  However, former 

Middlebury Historical Society president David Pope thought it may 

have originated from a family of that name in the area who may have 

given their name to Straitsville, a section of southeast Naugatuck 

through which it passes. Straitsville was once the center of Salem 

Bridge, as Naugatuck was then known, with its own post office, stores, 

jail and hotel.  With the arrival of the railroad, and the subsequent 

growth of industry, in particular the Goodyear Company, traffic 

through Straitsville declined and the center of town shifted to the 

present center.  

A less than complementary description of this area in The Turnpikes of 

New England says this: About fourteen miles from New Haven the main 

road to Waterbury passes by Beacon Mountain, a rude ridge of almost 

naked rock stretching south-west.  On both side the cliffs are lofty, particular-

ly on the west; on the east, at a little distance from the road, they overhang 

in a threatening manner. 

The construction of the turnpike was the cause of much squabbling 

since the residents of both Watertown and Waterbury wanted this 

route to pass through their town.  Hostilities also arose between the 

Straits Turnpike Company and the town of Waterbury over the re-

sponsibly of repair costs for Salem Bridge over which this road passes.   

In any case, the route was completed and operated in its entirety  as a 

toll road until  1821 when a portion was made free and other sections 

then followed. 

 

 Route 64:  The Woodbury and Waterbury Turnpike  

In his book The Town and History of Waterbury James Anderson tells us that òIn 

1823 the Woodbury and Waterbury Turnpike was projected and probably accom-

plishedó.  Now known as Route 64 and locally as Middlebury Road, this 8 mile 

stretch of highway was one of the earliest roads connecting Middlebury to Wood-

bury.  Today, Route 64 begins at Chase Parkway, goes 0.2 miles through the rock 

cut crosses Route 63 and  goes west to Woodbury.  Its initial path also began at 

Chase Parkway but then curved in a more southerly direction dipping over the 

Waterbury town line and finally back up to the crest. Some of this original road 

exists today just south of the intersection as Old Waterbury Road and it was here 

that the service station and play area that became known as Little Peoples Village 

was built by William Lannen around 1930. From here the road follows, with a few 

exceptions, the old road to Woodbury.  At the intersection of Glenwood Ave, it 

originally traveled up Tucker Hill Road and went around what is now Library 

Road. The road progresses on to Juddõs Corner near the stop for the trolley.  Just 

past Shepardson Haven at the approach to Meadowview Park a traffic light was 

installed to improve safety at the merge with Route 188. Close to Lake Quassa-

paug, the present Route 64 passes over the old road now called Old Woodbury 

Road.  This section of Route 64 has undergone several name changes over the 

years as it combined and recombined with other highways.  These included Route 

3, US 6, Route 14, US 6A and finally in 1967, Route 64. 

 

Changes are Coming  

According to the Connecticut DOT traffic log, the intersection of Route 63 and 

Route 64 is one of the busiest intersections in greater Waterbury with an abnor-

mally high accident rate.  Route 64 alone carries about 20,500 vehicles per day.  A 

large redesign and improvement project is planned for 2018.   

Roads like towns evolve and change for many reasons. Old roads followed the 

path of least resistance around geographical barriers such as lakes, elevations, and 

barriers such as cliffs and hills. Sometimes the easiest path was parallel to streams 

and rivers. Many of these old roads were simply walking trails which later carried 

horses, carts, carriages and finally automobiles. They were packed down and re-

surfaced, straightened, lowered and raised, and in some cases, rerouted. The 

improvements to the Route 64 and Route 63 intersection will result in changes in 

topography, routing and visuals on the surface and presents a perfect opportunity 

to reconnect with the past buried beneath and may provide historical and archae-

ological clues about our town. 

 


